
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with physical limitations that may tend to restrict access to or participation in this meeting 
should contact the County Administrator’s office (231-779-9453) at least twelve (12) hours prior to the scheduled start of the meeting. 
 

 
Wexford County 

 
 

Mike Bengelink, Chair 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

The Human Resources/Public Safety Committee of the Wexford County Board of Commissioners will 
hold a regular meeting on Tuesday, July 28, 2020 beginning at 4:00 p.m. in the Commissioner’s Room, 
Third Floor, 437 E. Division St., Cadillac, Michigan. 

 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER  
B. ROLL CALL 
C. ADDITIONS / DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
E. APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 23, 2020 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES ........................ 1 
F. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

The Committee welcomes all public input.  
G. AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Sheriff’s Office Monthly Report (Sheriff/Undersheriff – June 2020)  ......................................... 5 
2. North Flight Monthly Update (P. Owens – June 2020) ...................................................... 10 
3. Emergency Management Monthly Report (T. Baker – June 2020) ................................... 11 
4. Central Dispatch Monthly Report (D. Alworden – June 2020) ............................................ 12 
5. Veterans Services Monthly Report (K. Myers – June 2020) ............................................. 14 
6. Employee Recognition ......................................................................................... 15 
7. Acceptance of Resignation from the Veterans Services Committee .................... 16 
8. Veteran Service Officer Classification .................................................................. 17 

H. CORRESPONDENCE  
I. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
J. ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS   
K. COMMITTEE COMMENTS  
L. CHAIR COMMENTS 
M. ADJOURN  

HUMAN RESOURCES/PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 



WEXFORD COUNTY 
HUMAN RESOURCES/PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
JUNE 23, 2020 

The meeting was called to order by Chair Bengelink at 4:00 p.m. in the Commissioner’s Room of 
the Courthouse, 437 E. Division, Cadillac, Michigan.  

Members Present:  Michael Bengelink, Michael Bush, Brian Potter and Gary Taylor 
Absent: None 
Also Present: Duane Alworden, Dispatch Director; Travis Baker, Emergency Manager; 

Jami Bigger, Executive Assistant; Kathy Cline, Veterans Service Officer; 
Janet Koch, Administrator; Kristi Nottingham, Treasurer; Paul Owens, 
North Flight General Manager; Trent Taylor, Sheriff 

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
None.  

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
A motion was made by Taylor and supported by Bush to approve the Agenda. A vote was called. 
All in favor.  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A motion was made by Bush and supported by Potter to approve the May 26, 2020, Regular 
Meeting Minutes.  A vote was called all in favor.  

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None.  

AGENDA ITEMS 
G.1. Sheriff’s Department Monthly Report (May 2020)
Sheriff Taylor reported the headcount at the jail is 38. Prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, the jail
population had 110 inmates. Sheriff Taylor and Sheriff’s Office staff are working with Judge
Fagerman on a “coming out of COVID plan” that will be in phases. He noted they will see a decrease
in cost for inmate meals and medical.

Sheriff Taylor also reported:  
• The front office is open by appointment.
• Many staff and half of the jail population were tested for COVID-19 in May; there were no

positive cases.
• Two employees graduated from the Corrections Academy.
• There are three deputy openings.

DRAFT

1



Human Resource/Public Safety Meeting 
June 23, 2020 

            Page 2 of 4 

G.2. North Flight Monthly Update (May 2020)
Paul Owens, General Manager, reported revenue volume has dropped by 40% due to COVID-19.
Revenue in Wexford County is down 20%. North Flight is continuing to do a 90-day rolling budget.
A new budget will be done by July 1. Mr. Owens stated the pandemic has substantially impacted their
bottom line financially. North Flight will not fill their open manager position at this time. It is also
likely they will not fill their open Base Coordinator position. Two Paramedic positions are open,
North Flight is hopeful to fill both soon.

Mr. Owens thanked Travis Baker, Emergency Manager, for securing PPE supplies for North Flight. 

G.3. Emergency Management Monthly Report (May 2020)
Travis Baker, Emergency Manager, reported he has been dealing with many things related to the
COVID-19 pandemic including paperwork, filing reports, and making sure supplies are available.
Mr. Baker has also been working with FEMA and the State on a grant application for reimbursement
of purchases related to COVID-19.

The Code-Red system is up and running. He has been completing trainings on the system as they 
become available. The City of Cadillac included information regarding Code-Red in the water bills 
that were sent out to residents. Mr. Baker noticed a large jump in the number of members after that, 
so far 2,100 residents have signed up. Information will go out again in future bills.  

The peaceful protest that took place in Cadillac early June went smoothly. The Emergency Operations 
Center was utilized, and a couple communication issues were realized.  Mr. Baker informed the 
community of equipment that could be purchased to help resolve these issues and the costs associated. 

G.4. Central Dispatch Monthly Report (May 2020)
Duane Alworden, Dispatch Director, reported:

• Call numbers and LEIN responses are starting to go back up.
• Things at the new building are going fine.
• They are down one employee but have received many applications through Indeed.com.

Mr. Alworden also mentioned money left over in the building contingency may be available to 
address part of the communication issues in the EOC. He will follow up with the Administrator.  

G.5. Veterans Services Monthly Report (May 2020)
Ms. Kathy Cline, Veterans Service Officer, reported May was a slow month for the Veterans Services
Department. They did some work from home and had calls with veterans. They have been meeting
with veterans by appointment only.

DRAFT

2



Human Resource/Public Safety Meeting 
June 23, 2020 

            Page 3 of 4 

Ms. Cline also reported: 
• There were no veterans’ burial benefits or emergency assistance applied for the month.
• Federal training has been rescheduled.
• Mr. Myers has been working on reallocating grant funds because the Veteran’s Expo was

cancelled.
• Sanitizer and masks with the Veterans Department’s name and phone number printed on them

were ordered.
• Four billboards in the county were purchased for advertising and they have also been

advertising on the radio.
• Veterans in need of food assistance should contact the Veterans Services Department about a

food card. The department received $5,000 in food cards that must be used by the end of
September.

G.6. Employee Recognition
A motion was made by Potter and supported by Bush to present the certificates of appreciation
to David Batten and Melissa Bismack at the next BOC meeting. A vote was called. All in favor.

G.7. Administration Reclassification/Position Description Request
A motion was made by Taylor and supported by Bush to approve the new title and position
description of Executive Assistant/HR Coordinator and to classify the position as an L5,
effective July 5, 2020. A vote was called. All in favor.

G.8 Support of House Resolution No. 277
A motion was made by Taylor and supported by Bush to support Resolution No. 277 and
forward it to the Board for approval.

Commissioner Bengelink explained that the resolution would be Wexford County’s commitment to 
not defund the police.  

A vote was called. All in favor. 

G.9. Policy Reformatting
It was stated Section B and the purchasing policy will be reviewed at the Policy Committee’s meeting
in a couple weeks. Ms. Koch explained the reformatting was completed to the whole manual. Once
the policy manual is complete, it can be provided by e-mail (pdf), hard copy or flash drive.

CORRESPONDENCE 
None. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None.  

DRAFT

3



Human Resource/Public Safety Meeting 
June 23, 2020 

            Page 4 of 4 

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
Ms. Koch stated she will meet with the judges to discuss access to the Courthouse and Lake Street 
building.  

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
None.  

CHAIR COMMENTS 
Commissioner Bengelink thanked everyone for attending.  

ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made by Taylor and supported by Potter to adjourn at 4:39 p.m. A vote was 
called. All in favor.  

___________________________________ _________________________________ 
Michael Bengelink, Chair Jami Bigger, Recording Secretary  

DRAFT

4



• OFFICE OF THE SHERIFF • WEXFORD COUNTY

Trent J Taylor 
Sheriff 

Richard R. Doehring 
Undersheriff 

Wexford County 

Office of the Sheriff 

Monthly Report 

June 

2020 

1015 Lincoln St.· Cadillac, Michigan 49601 • 231-779-9216 • FAX: 231-779-0218 
www.wexfordsheriff.org 5



6



7



8



9



Response Times Jan through June Response Times June
Township Requests Time Township Requests Time

Antioch 0 0 Antioch 0 0
Boon 13 19.82 Boon 1 21
Cadillac 772 4.37 Cadillac 128 4.42
Cedar Creek 70 7.85 Cedar Creek 10 7.64
Cherry Grove 88 11.41 Cherry Grove 14 10.3
Clam Lake 118 6.95 Clam Lake 25 8.08
Colfax 22 12.53 Colfax 3 8.97
Greenwood 21 11.27 Greenwood 4 9.58
Hanover 0 0 Hanover 0 0
Haring 212 6.47 Haring 37 5.89
Henderson 5 13.66 Henderson 2 15.18
Liberty 29 10.29 Liberty 5 13.72
Manton 60 6.29 Manton 10 5.95
Selma 89 11.67 Selma 9 10.07
Slagle 0 0 Slagle 0 0
South Branch 52 21.29 South Branch 10 24.25
Springville 0 0 Springville 0 0
Total Requests 1551 Total Requests 261
Average Response 6.96 Average Response 7.13

(3) Intercepts with Mesick Rescue
(4) MEI’s: (1) Clam Lake Township, (1) City of Cadillac, (1) Haring Township, (1) Henderson Township

10



Wexford County Emergency 
Management Report 

June 2020 

- Worked with District Health Department #10 on COVID Testing at Baker
College, two days of testing.

- Set up EOC for Protest in Cadillac. Saturday 6th June
- Attended several phone meetings with Lansing and area organizations.
- Ordered wipes from SEOC in Lansing.
- With help of the Haring Township Fire Department, picked up a donation

from SC Johnson, they donated a care package for local first responders,
boxes will be delivered this month.

- Completed several surveys for EMPG grant and other surveys at request
of Lansing EM office.

- Things are slowly leveling off, not as crazy as it was in the start of this
pandemic.

Travis Baker 07/23/2020 

11



Wexford County 

Central Dispatch 

Public Safety 
Report 

          June 2020 

G.4.

12



CENTRAL DISPATCH 

Total LEIN Responses   14523 

CAD GENERATED:  INCIDENTS: 
Sheriff Department  859 
Animal Control   63 
Michigan State Police    586 
Cadillac Police Department     1041 
Manton Police Department    25 
EMS Calls 649 
Fire Calls   178 
Support Services Calls    87 
Central Dispatch 125 
911 Hang up/Text Back          324 

TOTAL CALLS FOR SERVICE    3937 

TELEPHONE CALLS RECEIVED:  
9-1-1 calls   1675 
Administrative Calls  4802 
TOTAL CALLS RECEIVED: 6477 

13



lVexford County Veterans Services 
401 N. Lake Street, Cadillac, MI 49601 

231-775-6654

Kent Myers, Director 

7 July, 2020 

Veterans Services Monthly Report 

June 2020 Overview 
• Veterans in office visits-22
• Logged phone contacts-277
• Veterans who received emergency assistance - 1
• Veterans ineligible/denied for emergency assistance - 1
• County Burial benefits and letters have been initiated -2

During the month of June, Veterans Services resumed in office visits by appointment and 
phone contact. Veterans and families are receiving information through the mail, over the 
phone, via the computer and in person. Our services continue to assist those in need, 
veterans with questions or concerns regarding Federal, State and County benefits. 
Our Michigan Veterans Affairs Agency (MVAA) grant has been amended and approved by 
the State of Michigan and is currently in line with helping veterans in need of counseling 
services, food assistance through Meijer Food vouchers and emergency assistance through 
the Michigan Veterans Trust Fund. 
Work continues on the WWII Veterans Memorial Wall at the courthouse, Commissioner 
Gary Taylor and Wexford County Veterans Committee is gathering information from 
families and friends of those veteran killed in action. 

Respectfully, 
Kent Myers, Director 

14



G.6.
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

COMMITTEE: HR/Public Safety Committee 
FROM:  Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: July 28, 2020 
SUBJECT: Employee Recognition Certificates 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

Wexford County would like to recognize employees for their service, per County policy 
B.13-0, at 10, 15, 20, 25, 30 and 35 years.  The following employees should be recognized at
a Board of Commissioners meeting for their service as follows:

EMPLOYEE NAME DEPARTMENT YEARS OF 
SERVICE 

Matthew Howell Sheriff’s Office 10 Years 
Norma Kijorski Administration 10 Years 

Christine Wright Corrections 15 Years 

Matthew Howell began employment with Wexford County on August 16, 2010 as a Deputy 
Sheriff and continues to work in this position.  

Norma Kijorski began employment with Wexford County on August 16, 2010 as an Executive 
Assistant in the Administration Office. On February 3, 2011 Norma was promoted to Senior 
Executive Assistant and continues to work in this position.  

Christine Wright began employment with Wexford County on August 1, 2005 as a Corrections 
Officer and continues to work in this position.  

RECOMMENDATION: 
Presentation of the Certificate of Appreciations to the above employees at the next BOC 
meeting. 

15



July 81\ 2020 

To: Janet Koch 
County Administrator 
Cadillac, MI 49601 

,. 

Subj: Resignation as Secretary of the Wexford County Veteran Service 

Committee 

I have been honored to be a member of this committee since its 
inception and proud to serve our Veterans, families, Wexford County 

and our committee. 

I feel that at this time I need to devote some more time to my husband 
and out of state family which will keep us on the road for several weeks 
each year. 

We have a great team that will move forward serving our veterans with 
the dignity and respect they deserve. I want to thank everyone on your 

staff who has assisted me at various times and supported all our efforts. 

It was my honor and privilege to have been a part of this great team. My 

last meeting will be in October and will assist fully in finding a 
replacement. 

Copy to: 
Gary Taylor- Chairman 
Kent Myer - Director 

Most Sincerely, 

�i-m� 
Susan E. Marcum 
Secretary, WCVSC 

Received by Wexford County' 

JUL OB 2020 

Administration Office 

16



G.8.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

COMMITTEE: HR/Public Safety Committee 
FROM:  Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: July 28, 2020  
SUBJECT: Veteran Service Officer Classification 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

The June 24, 2020 meeting of the Finance Committee included a discussion of wages for the 
Veterans Service Officer position. It was noted that a wage level classification for that position 
had never been determined. 

At their meeting on July 8, the Veterans Services Committee voted to appoint the Veteran 
Service Officer as Co-Director and classify the position as M2 and place the current employee at 
the one-year step level, making the wage $19.13 per hour. Minutes from the meeting are 
attached. The current wage for this position is $18.50 per hour. 

Other M2 level positions at the County include the Community Corrections Coordinator, 
Dispatch Assistant Director, GIS Specialist, Maintenance Supervisor, Probate Court 
Administrator, Probate Court Juvenile Court Administrator, Probate Court Assistant Probation 
Officer, and the Treasurer’s PA 125 Administrator.  

Per County Policy, the Human Resource/Public Safety Committee must approve the 
classification and title change of the position. 

The Veterans Services Department has the funds within their budget this year to cover the 
increase. If the Committee approves this classification, a budget amendment would not be 
needed. 

17



18



19



20

jbigger
Highlight


	E. Minutes
	G.1. Sheriff Office Report
	G.2. North Flight Report
	Sheet1

	G.3. Emergency Management Report
	G.4. Central Dispatch Report
	G.5. Veterans Report
	G.6. Employee Recognition
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.7. Resignation Letter
	G.8. Veterans Service Classification
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.8.1. Veterans Committee Mins



